
STAFFORD COUNTY 
AGRICULTURAL AND PURCHASE OF DEVELOPMENT 

RIGHTS COMMITTEE MINUTES 
April 22, 2013 

 
The meeting of the Stafford County Agricultural and Purchase of Development Rights Committee for 
Monday, April 22, 2013, was called to order 7:04 p.m. by Chairman Jeff Adams in the County 
Administration Conference Room of the George L. Gordon, Jr. Government Center.  
 
Members Present: Jeff Adams, Peter O’Hara, Robert Hunt, Marty McClevey  
 
Members Absent: Gail Clark, Craig DeBenard  
 
Staff Present:  Kathy Baker, John Harbin, Stacie Stinnette  
 
Guests Present: Virginia Adams, Yousra Neberai 
 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Approval of Minutes – none 

 
3. Staff Update 

 
• North Stafford Farmers Market 

  
Mr. Harbin stated that the zoning permit had been issued to establish the market and that the applicant 
will also be applying for sign permits.  
 
Mrs. Baker mentioned that there had been an article in the paper the past weekend stating that the market 
will open Sunday June 2nd and that the applicant did receive a grant for two years from Economic 
Development Authority for marketing purposes and also getting a market manager on board. She also 
reminded the Committee that at last month’s meeting there had been talk about getting some type of sign 
which staff put on the agenda.  
 
Mr. Adams stated that he had heard from the applicant earlier that day. He stated that she explained to 
him that she would like for the market managers to be able to sell water and “eco bags” (reusable 
shopping bag) to make money to keep the market going.  He said that he was aware that vendors were not 
allowed to sell water but that the applicant wasn’t a vendor, and he wasn’t certain if the rules specifically 
stated whether the applicant could or couldn’t.  
 
Mrs. Adams stated that the Fredericksburg Market manager sold water. 
 
Mr. O’Hara mentioned that the rules could be amended.  
 
Mrs. Baker inquired why a vendor couldn’t sell water.  
 
Mr. Adams explained that the water was not produced by the vendor.  

 

Page 1 of 10 
 



AGRICULTURAL/PURCHASE OF DEVELOPMENT 
RIGHTS COMMITTEE MINUTES  
APRIL 22, 2013 
 
4. New Business 

 
• Purchase of Development Rights Applications 

 
Mr. Harbin provided copies of each application which were a total of 9. He explained that they ranged in 
size from 38 acres up to 149 acres and that at this point they have already been processed. He explained 
that the applications would now be ranked by the existing ranking criteria and also there were site visits 
being set up as well. He also stated they staff would present the complete ranking numbers within the 
following two months. 
 
Mrs. Baker reminded that in the previous round there had been one member who was interested in going 
on the site visits and mentioned that if anybody was interested in visiting any of the sites, staff would 
certainly try to accommodate their schedules. She also stated that photos would be taken and presented in 
a power point presentation.  
 
Mr. Adams stated that he would try to come to the site visits, but Mrs. Baker recommended he didn’t 
since he was one of the applicants.  
 
Mr. McClevey also stated that he would try to join.  
 
Mrs. Baker replied that she would talk to the applicants and arrange the visits through them. She also 
stated that she would try to have some preliminary information to the Committee by the following 
meeting and that once the initial scoring was done, as spelled out in the Ordinance, the individual 
applicants would be contacted as well.  
 
Mr. Adams asked if there were some repeats from last time. 
 
Mrs. Baker said that the Adams and Wilson applications were repeats.  
 
Mr. O’Hara asked for a map that shows the properties.  
 
Mrs. Baker provided the maps and asked if there was a part of it that the Committee wanted to review in 
particular. 
 
Mr. Adams asserted that it didn’t look like there were any developer parcels.  
 
Mrs. Baker stated that Lewis Wilson was apparently the only one who put in a preliminary subdivision 
plan and that staff would have to research how far along he was in the process and provide a smaller scale 
plan.  
 
Mr. Harbin stated he believed that there were about 17 lots on the provided preliminary plan.  
 
Mrs. Baker stated that one of the properties was the Harris Farm which was a cider mill that, to her 
knowledge, was no longer running.  
 
Mr. Adams pointed out that several of the properties were out in the Hartwood area.  

Page 2 of 10 
 



AGRICULTURAL/PURCHASE OF DEVELOPMENT 
RIGHTS COMMITTEE MINUTES  
APRIL 22, 2013 
 
 
Mrs. Baker stated that Camp Selden Road was one of them and that Jerry Silver was part owner in that 
property. 
 
Mr. Hunt asked if everybody could take all the data home and asked how sensitive the information was.  
 
Mrs. Baker stated since everything was public record it could be taken home.  
 

• Farmers Market Signage 
 
Mr. McClevey stated he had looked at road and highway signage and also talked to Todd from Virginia 
Logos who was the contractor for VDOT.  He found out that farmer’s market signs for Stafford could 
basically be put up on the Route 1 corridor, however he suggested that the fees were rather steep.  He 
stated there was a $100 application fee for each sign plus a $450 fee per year for maintenance. He also 
inquired about areas like Culpepper and other communities and was informed that if you were a town you 
would not be under VDOT sanctions but you would make up your own rules. He also presented an 
application for a blue 1 ½ feet by 6 feet TODS sign (Tourist Oriented Directional Sign) with a turn arrow 
on it.  
 
Mr. Adams pointed out that this would explain why so many farmers markets just had a sandwich board 
that they put up on private property.  
 
Mr. McClevey explained that you could do that on private property but if it were on VDOT right of way 
they would have to design it and put it up. He also stated that these particular signs could be looked up 
under www.virginalogos.com go to Tourist Oriented Directional Signs (TODS), then application for 
participation and finally TODS category 1 application form.  He stated they had an exemption for farmers 
markets.  
 
Mr. O’Hara informed that he read in the newspaper that the Economic Development Authority had some 
stipulations for how the sign would have to be. 
 
Mrs. Baker stated she would try to get the information from Economic Development to see what they had 
asked for. 
 
Mr. McClevey explained that he had just started at the VDOT perspective and encouraged everybody to 
come forward with any information on other signage.  
 
Mrs. Baker reminded everybody about the conversation about having some type of certification at least 
temporarily.  
 
Mr. O’Hara inquired what their responsibility was for that sign. 
 
Mrs. Baker replied that there weren’t any stipulations for any kind of signage there as far as what was 
being talked about the previous month. 
 
Mr. O’Hara asked if the market manager would be able to go and buy whatever sign she wants to have. 

Page 3 of 10 
 

http://www.virginalogos.com/


AGRICULTURAL/PURCHASE OF DEVELOPMENT 
RIGHTS COMMITTEE MINUTES  
APRIL 22, 2013 
 
 
Mrs. Baker agreed.  
 
Mr. Harbin added that he believed that the market manager had already spoken with the skate rink and 
had gotten their permission to post the sign on their property and she had also worked with the hospital to 
use their electronic display on the corner of Hospital Center Blvd and Route 1, which she would not be 
able to use. 
 
Mrs. Baker added that there were limitations about offsite advertising but there were certain temporary 
signs that were limited in size but she wasn’t sure about the specifics on the Ordinance requirements.   
 
Mr. Harbin stated there was no temporary event sign process and that was why the applicant had to get a 
sign permit for a permanent sign.  
 
Mr. Adams stated that in Dale City they had a 10 foot banner which goes up Sunday morning.  
 
Mr. Harbin stated that even temporary signs would also need permits. He has been helping the applicant 
with that issue. 
 
Mrs. Baker offered to bring the applicant back if there were any further questions.  
 
Mr. McClevey stated that there had only been a discussion whether the Committee wanted an onsite 
designation “this is a certified farmers market” and that he wasn’t sure if that had been accomplished.  
 
Mrs. Baker asked if the Committee would like to come up with some language. 
 
Mr. McClevey said he had been talking about some type of green county seal that said “certified farmers 
market” and that the Committee had a discussion whether to us the Stafford County logo.  He asked if it 
made a difference whether these sites were designated.  
 
Mr. O’Hara asked if it could be called a farmers market without going to the process. 
 
Mrs. Baker replied that she didn’t know the answer to that.  
 
Mr. O’Hara stated he was not particularly interested in getting involved in signs and he didn’t understand 
why they would certify anything.  He stated that he was only interested in whether a permit had been 
approved.  
 
Mr. McClevey stated he thought that the whole purpose of having a farmers market Ordinance had been 
to make a designation and that’s what he thought was the direction the Committee was going in.  
 
Mr. O’Hara stated that he felt they just made it easier for interested parties who would like to operate a 
farmers market and that this may be a loop hole which they could probably close with an amendment to 
the Ordinance the following year.   
 

Page 4 of 10 
 



AGRICULTURAL/PURCHASE OF DEVELOPMENT 
RIGHTS COMMITTEE MINUTES  
APRIL 22, 2013 
 
Mrs. Baker mentioned that part of it was that it had to be locally grown produce which was pushed by the 
guidelines adopted by the Committee.  She stated it would be up to the Committee to decide whether they 
wanted to be a part of that.  
 
Mr. Adams stated a lot of it would fall on Vanessa and she would have to distinguish what was at the 
hospital verses what was going on in the parking lot. 
 
Mr. O’Hara mentioned that if he was allowed to use the logo he would do the logo and Stafford County 
Farmers Market down below. He thought that that was pretty simple, but the question was whether they 
would require that and deny others from using farmers market in their advertising.  
 
Mr. McClevey explained that he would like to see that because he felt that would make a statement to the 
public that there would be locally grown produce only. He further mentioned that the Committee went 
through the whole process of coming up with an Ordinance to define those things and to make a 
distinction.  He stated that individuals, if they chose to get produce from everywhere, could do so under a 
commercial permit, but it would not be considered a farmers market.  
 
Mr. Hunt stated that this was not an issue yet and that they should let the whole thing evolve and see 
where it goes. He was also confident that there would be people who will try to find a way around and 
beat the system.  
 
Mr. McClevey stated that he wasn’t sure if Ms. Elizabeth Borst, who runs the Spotsylvania Market, had 
come up with any designation. 
 
Mr. Hunt asked if anybody had been to the King George Market at the High School yet.  He explained 
that it was a small market but very unique.  
 
Mrs. Baker asked if they had any signage there. 
 
Mr. Hunt replied that they had signs in the parking lot that said King George Farmers Market.  
 
Mr. Adams added that they also had rules at the King George Farmers Market that said that the produce 
would have to be grown in either King George or Westmoreland.  
 
Mr. McClevey asked what the difference was between Ms. Borst’s market and any other person that 
established a market where they sell tennis shoes and other items.  He stated that the Committee had come 
up with criteria.  
 
Mrs. Baker suggested that maybe the Committee could come up with some type of a little plaque that lists 
some of the criteria that could be displayed at the market. She stated that she understood the Committee’s 
point of wanting people to know that the produce was in fact locally grown and that they were meeting 
the criteria.  
 
Mr. Adams stated that there were so many other markets approved by the local government so that this 
would be a non-issue.  
 

Page 5 of 10 
 



AGRICULTURAL/PURCHASE OF DEVELOPMENT 
RIGHTS COMMITTEE MINUTES  
APRIL 22, 2013 
 
Mr. O’Hara felt that this was an opportunity for the applicant to differentiate herself from any other 
produce stands.  
 
Mr. Adams added that the applicant already had her vendors too. 
 
Mr. Harbin stated this market would have a much different feel then the other markets in the County.  
 
Mr. Adams suggested to wait and see what the EDA said and what the applicant was going to do. 
 
Mr. McClevey asked if Economic Development had their own logo. 
 
Mrs. Baker replied that what is being used now around the County now was a picture of George 
Washington and a little hoop boy, but that was only for places that were County-run and not just 
financially supported. 
 
Mr. Adams stated that at the end of the day it would be EDA’s money and therefore EDA’s rules. 
 
Mr. McClevey went back to VDOT signs and stated that it would be doable but pricy if they wanted to 
have a more permanent solution.  
 
Due to the cost of the signs Mrs. Baker suggested that they would have to make sure that the market 
location would actually work and was established before going through with the signs.  
 
Mr. McClevey pointed out that there was information online about signage and it said not to use banners 
and certain type of sandwich board because they could be unreadable.  

 
5. Unfinished Business 

 
• Farmers Markets 

 
o Farmers Market at Garrisonville Road and Barrett Heights Road 

 
Mrs. Baker stated that she had not heard back from Mr. Locklear and she believed that he had been 
focusing on other locations. 
 
Mr. Hunt stated that the market had been open that afternoon selling produce on 610. 
 
Mr. Adams pointed out that signs mysteriously appear all over the County on weekends and then they are 
gone Monday morning.   

 
6. Chesapeake Bay Compliance  
 
Mr. Adams referred to an email sent out on March 28th regarding the Chesapeake Bay Compliance by Mr. 
Harbin and said that he would like to put that on the agenda for the next meeting.  He mentioned that he 
had talked briefly with Mr. Harbin and came to the conclusion that without additional staff being hired 
there would only one to two plans accomplished per week.  

Page 6 of 10 
 



AGRICULTURAL/PURCHASE OF DEVELOPMENT 
RIGHTS COMMITTEE MINUTES  
APRIL 22, 2013 
 
 
Mr. Harbin stated that it had been sent out and reviewed by Tri-County and agreed to by the new director.  
 
Mr. Hunt asked if this was indirectly tied to the funds the County sends to the Tri-County. 
 
Mr. Harbin stated there would be a new memorandum of agreement developed.  He repeated that Tri-
County did a review and that it was now in DCR’s hands, but they hadn’t received any comments back 
from them. He also mentioned that sending it to DCR was a requirement in order to avoid being fined for 
incompliance with the Chesapeake Bay Act.  
 
Mrs. Baker asked which part of the memorandum Mr. Adams had a problem with. 
 
Mr. Adams referred to number 6 on the last page where they talked about “if the owner refuses to 
cooperate, if they are in violation for something right from the get go and they have 30 days to rectify.  He 
stated that he didn’t see how anybody could get a plan written in 30 days.  
 
Mr. Harbin stated he had been looking into that a little bit more and this was in the Chesapeake Bay 
Ordinance and it said “Land upon which agricultural activities are being conducted shall undergo a soil 
and water quality conservation assessment. Such assessment shall evaluate the effectiveness of existing 
practices pertaining to soil erosion and sediment control, nutrient management and management of 
pesticides and where necessary results in a plan that outlines additional practices needed to ensure that 
water quality protection is accomplished, consistent with this article.”  
 
Mr. Adams made it clear again that from experience he knew that 30 days would not be sufficient time to 
come up with a plan. 
 
Mrs. Baker added that it wouldn’t be a full blown plan but only a conservation assessment.  
 
Mr. Hunt stated that all the regulations had been written by DCR, but that was not the only resource down 
there that could write plans.  He mentioned that there were at least two or three other people. 
 
Mrs. Baker explained that her understanding was that the plan did not have to be drawn up by Tri-County, 
however the assessment, which Tri-County had resources to do, as far as releasing the information had 
been a problem in the past.  
 
Mr. McClevey asked if there was a template for a conservation assessment. 
 
Mr. Hunt negated and explained that Mr. Adams had been referring to was a National Resource 
Conservation Plan and there used to be a template up until two years ago and the DCR had created a RMP 
(Resource Management Plan) which had never been defined. He mentioned that now they had also came 
up with another document called the conservation assessment, but in theory anyone could go and right up 
a conservation assessment since it was now undefined.  
 
Mrs. Baker reminded the Committee that DCR had a list of what could qualify as different BMPs on the 
property and that Mr. Hubble had presented that information to the Committee.  
 

Page 7 of 10 
 



AGRICULTURAL/PURCHASE OF DEVELOPMENT 
RIGHTS COMMITTEE MINUTES  
APRIL 22, 2013 
 
Mr. McClevey stated there should be a template that farmers could fill out to make sure that their farm 
plan is in compliance.  He also asked if best management practices were enforceable now.  
 
Mrs. Baker stated there would have to be some type of assessment to determine if the levels the state was 
looking for were being met.  
 
Mr. McClevey agreed but wanted to make sure that farmers knew where to go. 
 
Mrs. Baker stated there was not just one individual clearing house that they would have to go to that had 
just one template. She pointed out that there were plenty of different agencies.  
 
Mr. McClevey clarified that eventually the County would have to adopt one means of assessment.  
 
Mr. Hunt agreed that at some point the State would have to adopt a reasonable standard and that didn’t 
even exist at this point. He stated that right now this was just to keep the County from receiving big fines.  
 
Mr. Adams agreed but also pointed out that he himself was on the other end. He stated that if somebody 
came to him and said they had to do an assessment he would like to know who would enforce it. He also 
said that he wouldn’t want anybody looking around on his property. 
 
Mr. Hunt explained that they were only going to survey were the plots of land that didn’t have a 
conservation plan.  He asked Mrs. Baker if they had already identified where the plots were.  
 
Mrs. Baker replied that they didn’t and what they were starting with were the properties that would be 
most affected for the Chesapeake Bay and have Resource Protection Areas on them.  
 
Mr. Harbin added that the hard part was to exchange information with Tri-County to know where 
assessments had already been done.  
 
Mr. Hunt stated that he was confident that most if not all of those properties already had plans.  
 
Mr. Adams explained that his other concern was if the State really started pushing without resources 
added, Stafford what fall to the bottom of the pile in the sense that there were more farms in King George 
and Spotsylvania. 
 
Mr. Hunt stated that the City of Fredericksburg had zeroed out its funding for Tri-County and that 
Stafford was still the heaviest contributors.  
 
Mr. McClevey asked where he could go if he had been operating his family farm under an outdated forest 
management plan and was now trying to upgrade and comply. 
 
Mr. Hunt replied that he should start at the NRCS and they would direct him to the right person.  
 
Mr. McClevey made sure if that was the advice they would give to people.   
 
Mr. Hunt confirmed.  

Page 8 of 10 
 



AGRICULTURAL/PURCHASE OF DEVELOPMENT 
RIGHTS COMMITTEE MINUTES  
APRIL 22, 2013 
 
 
Mrs. Baker pointed out that it would depend on what the land owner would like to do with his land.  
 
To bring the discussion to an end Mr. Hunt asked if the concern was that they could put an unrealistic 
requirement on the Tri-County.  
 
Mr. Adams agreed and said that he just didn’t think the timeline could be met.  
 
Mr. McClevey suggested that it would also make sense to come up with a step by step guideline to update 
your plan. 
 
Mr. Hunt stated there was a way to create a reasonable approach to show the County was trying to 
manage its runoff issues and the fact that there are plans met the criteria for not being fined.  He stated 
that right now the goal was to identify a plan which may take 5 to 10 years. 
 
Mr. Harbin pointed out that Stafford County was the first one that had to comply with this sort of 
violation within the state.  
 
Mrs. Baker added that there have not been any parameters set. 
 
Mr. Hunt stated this was the first draft from the County and the first card on the table in and negotiating 
process. He insisted that Stafford County would need an updated memorandum to understand what was 
going to be done with the money given by Stafford County. 
 
Mr. Adams added that BMPs were not cheap. 
 
Mr. McClevey stated this was a plan and not a requirement.  
 
Mr. Hunt explained that one could go to multiple sides and find BMPs defined as different things. 
 
Mr. McClevey stated that he would be willing to discuss some steps with Mr. Hunt.  
 
Mr. Hunt suggested that the Committee should not go too far in advance of where the County was going 
and just go step by step. 
 
Mrs. Baker stated staff would be working on this through the end of next year.  
 
7. Next Meeting 
 

• May 27, 2013 Regular Meeting (Consider rescheduling due to holiday) 
 
Mr. Adams stated that the only reason why they would need a meeting in May was if they actually had 
rankings.  
 
Mrs. Baker stated that she would probably come up with a draft by May but didn’t think they would be 
able to have the final preliminary information since they had to meet with 9 different applicants. 

Page 9 of 10 
 



AGRICULTURAL/PURCHASE OF DEVELOPMENT 
RIGHTS COMMITTEE MINUTES  
APRIL 22, 2013 
 
 
Mr. Hunt made a motion to cancel the May meeting and schedule a May meeting if something came up 
that was critical.  
 
Mr. O’Hara seconded the motion.  
 
Mr. Adams pointed out that would put the next meeting at June 24th.  
 
Mr. O’Hara stated he would be out of town that week if they needed a quorum they would have to move 
the meeting.  
 
After a short discussion it was decided to leave the meeting scheduled on the 24th.  
 
8. Adjournment 
 
With no further items to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 8:30 p.m.  

Page 10 of 10 
 


